
Special School Board Meeting

July 3, 2025 

Board of Trustees 

Janie Sarmiento
Agapito Perez Jr.
Paola Candanoza 

Juan J. Ramos, Jr. - President  
Berenice Martinez – Vice President 
Yadira Flores - Secretary 
 Maria Acosta – Treasurer 

Sergio Coronado 
Superintendent 

“Students will be inspired to search, 
discover, experience, and apply knowledge in a safe creative environment” 



 
 
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE 
PROGRESO INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT 

 
Notice is hereby given that a SPECIAL School Board Meeting of the Board of Trustees of the 
Progreso I.S.D. will be held on the 3rd of July 2025 at 6:00 P.M. at the Administration Office, 
Conference Room, Progreso, Texas, at which time the following agenda items will be discussed. 

 

A-  Call meeting to order 
 
  A1 Pledge of Allegiance/Texas Flag 

A2 Prayer  
A3 Public Audience 

Public participation is limited to this, the designated open forum portion of the meeting.   
  In accordance with District Policy BED (Local), the Board may impose reasonable time  
  limits on this portion of the meeting.  Persons who wish to participate in this portion of  
  the meeting shall sign up with the presiding officer or designee before the meeting begins 
  and shall indicate the topic about which they wish to speak.  No presentation shall exceed 
  five minutes.  Delegations of more than five persons shall appoint one person to present  
  their views before the Board. 

A4 Board Minutes 
• June 26, 2025 - Regular Board Meeting 

 
B-  Superintendent’s Report 
  Discussion and possible action on the following: 
  B1 District Reports 
  B2  Discussion and Possible Action to Amend Board Policy DC(LOCAL) Employment  

  Practices  
  B3  Discussion and Update on Matters Related to UIL Soccer Program Hearing 
    
C-  Curriculum & Instruction: 
  Discussion and possible action on the following: 
   C1  Progreso ISD 2025-2026 Calendar 
   C2  Chromebooks Purchase for Instructional Use 
   C3  Edmentum 
   C4  Pearlized Mathematics Consulting 
   C5  Sharon Wells  
   C6 Texas Curriculum Management Program Cooperative (TCMPC)   
   
D-  Support Services/Facilities 
  Discussion and possible action on the following: 
  D1   Discussion and Possible Action to Authorize Superintendent to Solicit RFP/RFQ/Bids  

   for Athletic Insurance Services 
                           
 F-  Finance: 
  Discussion and possible action on the following: 
  F1 2025-2026 Budget Workshop II 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 
 
 

G-   Executive Session:  Closed Meeting under Texas Gov’t Code 551.071; 551.072; 551,074; 551.- 
076; 551,082. 
 
(a) Resignations and Superintendent’s recommendations for resignations, terminations, 

proposed terminations, re-assignments and proposed non-renewals of district employees 
(b) Superintendent’s recommendations, contract renewals and possible interviews for hiring 

of administrative & professional personnel - instructional and non-instructional 
(c) Superintendent’s recommendations for hiring of non-professional personnel - 

clerical/technical and auxiliary 
(d)  Discussion to Amend Compensation Plan 
 
 

H-  Reconvene in Open Meeting to take action on the following items: 
Discuss and take possible action on the following items: 
 
(a) Discussion and possible action on Superintendent’s recommendations concerning 

resignations, terminations, proposed terminations, re-assignments and proposed non-
renewals or suspensions of District employees. 

(b) Discussion and possible action on hiring of administrative & professional, instructional 
and non-instructional personnel and contract renewals 

(c) Discussion and possible action on hiring of non-professional Clerical/Technical and 
Auxiliary personnel  

(d) Discussion and Action to Amend Compensation  
 

I- Adjournment 
 

Dated this 30th day of June, 2025 – Progreso Independent School District 
 

By:  ___________________________________, Superintendent 
 
  I, the undersigned authority, hereby certify that the above Notice of Meeting of the Board of 

Trustees of the above-named school district is a correct copy of the Notice and that I posted the Notice on 
the bulletin board for public notices in the district’s Central Administrative office located at 600 N 
Business Farm Rd. 1015, Progreso, Texas, on the 30th day of June, 2025 at 5:00 P.M. 

 

Persons with disabilities who plan to attend this meeting and who may need auxiliary aids or 
services such as interpreters for persons who are deaf or hearing impaired, readers, large print or Braille, 
are requested to contact us at (956)565-3002 one day prior to the meeting so that appropriate 
arrangements can be made. 

 

  Dated this 30th day of June, 2025 – Progreso Independent School District  
 
 
   By:  ___________________________________, Superintendent 



 

A4 
Board Minutes 

 

 

 

 

 

 



                                                             MINUTES OF THE 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING  

HELD ON June 26, 2025 
TIME: 6:00 pm 

 
SESSION A:  The meeting was called to order by Juan J. Ramos Jr. Board President.                
A quorum was established as follows: 
 
MEMBERS PRESENT:    MEMBERS ABSENT: 
Juan J. Ramos Jr.                                                                  
Berenice Martinez                                                                                                   
Maria C. Acosta 
Yadira Flores (via ZOOM) 
Janie Sarmiento 
Agapito Perez Jr. 
Paola Candanoza 

        
Sergio Coronado, Superintendent 
          Eden R., School Attorney  
 

 
A-          Call meeting to order at 6:00 P.M. 
A1  Pledge of Allegiance/Texas Flag  
A2  Prayer – Ms. Janie Sarmiento 
A3          Public Audience----  

Jose N. Treviño thanked the board for their continued support of the soccer team and 
encouraged them to keep supporting the program. Marta Cazares shared her experiences 
working at Progreso ISD and voiced a few concerns. Gabriela Acosta requested that the board 
remove Mr. Juan Ramos from his position as board president. Enrique Camarena expressed 
his gratitude to everyone involved in the 2025 graduation ceremony and inquired about the 
status of the UIL hearing. He also requested new desks for teachers and principals and 
brought up the need for new band uniforms. Evelyn Castillo, a former Progreso ISD student, 
spoke about her time as a DTMS student and shared her concerns regarding the board 
president situation. Alicia Piña informed the board and audience that in November 2023, she 
received a very troubling message regarding the high school soccer team. She inquired about 
the current status of the mariachi group and the dance team. She went on to thank Ms. 
Sarmiento, Mr. Agapito Perez, Mr. Jay Ramos, Ms. Berenice, and Ms. Acosta for their 
support and donations to the family affected. Juan Carlos Macias emphasized that all 
students, regardless of their background, should have equal opportunities to attend school 
and participate in any sport they choose. He also expressed his gratitude to Board President 
Mr. Jay Ramos for his significant help in securing a scholarship for his son. Board president 
Mr. Jay Ramos thanks the community for the support on his case and apologies to the 
students, staff, school, family and community for his actions. Ms. Sarmiento asked Mr. 
Ramos to resign from the board of trustees.      
  

A4          Board Minutes 
• December 17, 2024 – Public Hearing & Regular School Board Meeting  
• December 24, 2024 – Special School Board Meeting  
• January 27, 2025 – Regular School Board Meeting 
• February 24, 2025 - Public Hearing & Regular School Board Meeting 
• March 25, 2025 - Public Hearing & Regular School Board Meeting 
• April 8, 2025 – Special School Board Meeting  
• May 5, 2025 – Special School Board Meeting 
• May 14, 2025 – Special School Board Meeting  
• May 19, 2025 – Special School Board Meeting 
• May 27, 2025 – Regular School Board Meeting 



 
Motion Made by, Berenice Martinez, to approve as presented 
Second by, Paola Candanoza 
VOTING FOR: Juan J. Ramos Jr., Berenice Martinez, Agapito Perez Jr., Maria C, Acosta, Yadira 
Flores, Janie Sarmiento, Paola Candanoza 
MOTION PASSES 

 
 

B-        Superintendents Report 
              Discussion and possible action on the following: 
              B1   District Reports 
   Mr. Coronado informed the board that Thursday marked the last day of 

summer school and the enrichment program, which had over 130 students participating at 
each campus. At the elementary level, enrichment activities included folklorico, art, 
gaming, and athletics. He noted that 40% of the students enrolled did not require summer 
school but chose to participate in enrichment activities. He also shared that preparations 
for the upcoming golf tournament. So far, 10 companies have registered, and Mr. Agapito 
and Mr. Ramos have additional teams confirmed. The goal is to reach 35 teams, and he 
invited the community to take part. All proceeds from the tournament will go toward 
scholarships for graduating seniors. Mr. Coronado continued by updating the board on 
recruitment efforts. He stated that recruitment has begun within the Progreso community 
and will expand beyond city limits. He also mentioned House Bill 1481, which prohibits 
student cellphone use. Attorney Mr. Eden Ramirez provided clarification to the board, 
noting that the district will have options for how to comply with the new law. Mr. Jorge 
Lazaro gave an update on the track and field project. He is working with Hellas to finalize 
the remaining details. Although rain has caused some delays, if the weather improves, the 
new stadium is expected to be completed by mid-July. Additionally, Mr. Lazaro reported on 
the EPA grant application submitted in November. The district is seeking up to $20 million 
for roof and parking lot repairs, solar panel installation, and A/C unit replacements across 
all district buildings. The application is progressing well, and Progreso remains a strong 
candidate for funding due to its location near the Mexican border. Finally, Mr. Hernandez 
updated the board on the fencing project, noting that it is nearly complete, with only the 
installation of the electrical gates remaining. 

 
              B2   Presentation by Valiant Energy Source LLC 

        Juan Galvan presents to the board, Energy Information & Data Management: 
Handling energy data, providing detailed usage reports, and offering insights to help 
clients make informed decisions. Energy Procurement & Supply Management: Vetting 
energy suppliers, conducting customized reverse auction RFPs, and liaising directly 
with utilities like AEP and MVEC to ensure smooth operations. Client Service: 
Verifying rates, switching accounts, resolving issues, and offering services like usage 
tracking, cost forecasting, and performance monitoring. Industry Knowledge & 
Experience: Identifying the best energy solutions based on client needs and offering the 
most cost-effective options. Demand-Side Management: Managing energy-efficiency 
projects and conducting lighting retrofits to help clients save energy costs. Renewables: 
Facilitating the procurement of renewable energy sources, such as solar and wind 
power, in summary, Valiant Energy provides top-notch energy management solutions, 
offering client education, expert guidance, and a full range of services to ensure clients 
get the best value and efficiency from their energy contracts Assisted the City of 
Edinburg in Reverse Bidding Process: Valiant Energy stepped in to help the City of 
Edinburg avoid a contract gap by guiding them through the, reverse bidding process. 
This action prevented the city from unintentionally going out of contract, which could 



have led to higher energy costs. Valiant proactively arranged an emergency meeting 
with city leaders to address the issue quickly and minimize potential expenses. Worked 
with IDEA Public Schools to identify billing anomalies: during a routine quarterly 
audit of IDEA Public Schools' energy bills. Valiant identified billing discrepancies. As 
a result, the team worked with the utility provider, AEP, to resolve the issues and 
secure a $11,400 credit for IDEA Public schools. Recovered $128,000.00 in taxes paid 
in error for the City of Roma: Valiant assisted the City of Roma recover over $128,000 
in taxes that had been paid in error. Additionally, Valiant managed a reverse bidding 
process that reduced the city's energy budget by 30% significantly lowering the costs. 
Assisted the City of La Joya before Winter Storm: Valiant Energy assisted the City of 
La Joya through a reverse bidding process just before Winter Storm Uri hit. By 
securing favorable energy contracts ahead of the storm, the city was able to save 
hundreds of thousands of dollars on energy costs. Recovered over $40,000.00 for the 
Boys & Girls Club of McAllen: Valiant identified and assisted the Boys & Girls Club of 
McAllen to recover over $40,000 in taxes that were paid in error. This refund allowed 
the club to reinvest the funds into operations, including opening a new position to 
further support their programs. In each case, Valiant Energy was proactive in 
identifying opportunities to reduce costs and recover funds, all while using their 
expertise to navigate complex energy markets and billing systems on behalf of their 
clients. 
 

 
B3   TASB Pay System Review  

  Mr. Coronado presents to the board, TASB will evaluate district pay systems 
and practices and develop strategies to improve competitive pay alignment and internal 
equity. The scope of the review will include all employee base pay and pay for 
extracurricular duty assignments (stipends). Funding source and cost, 199.41Estimated 
cost: $8,850 plus travel reimbursements for consultant.  

 
Motion Made by, Agapito Perez Jr., to approve as presented 
Second by, Maria Acosta 
VOTING FOR: Juan J. Ramos Jr., Berenice Martinez, Agapito Perez Jr., Maria C, Acosta, Yadira 
Flores, Janie Sarmiento, Paola Candanoza 
MOTION PASSES 

 
 
 

C-            Curriculum & Instruction: 
                 Discussion and possible action on the following: 
                 C1   Interlocal Agreement South Texas College Progreso ISD – Progreso Early College 

           High School  
   Mr. Coronado informs the board, the renew with South Texas College 

Interlocal Agreement. TERM This IA shall be in effect from August 18, 2025 to August 18, 
2026, and posted during this term on the College’s and School District’s respective internet 
websites. IA PURPOSE The purpose of this IA is to outline the roles and responsibilities of 
the College and the School District that participate in Dual Credit Programs Designated 
High Schools. The IA references Texas Education Agency requirement of the House Bill 
1638: Statewide Dual Credit Goals (herein called the “G1-4”). An additional Dual Credit 
Programs IA is required by the Texas Higher Education Coordinating Board (THECB). 

 
 
 



Motion Made by, Berenice Martinez, to approve Dr. ET 
Second by, Maria Acosta 
VOTING FOR: Juan J. Ramos Jr., Berenice Martinez, Agapito Perez Jr., Maria C, Acosta, Yadira 
Flores, Janie Sarmiento, Paola Candanoza 
MOTION PASSES 
 

 
                 C2   Memorandum of Understanding between Rio Grande Valley Independent School 

Districts, Charter Schools, and Rio Grande Valley Institutions of Higher Education for the 
implementation of College Prep Mathematics and English Language Arts courses 
  Mr. Coronado presents to the board, College Preparatory courses in English 
and mathematics are designed for high school seniors who have not met established college 
readiness benchmarks on assessments such as the TSIA, SAT, or ACT. In accordance with 
Texas Education Agency (TEA)guidelines, these courses may count toward College, 
Career, and Military Readiness (CCMR) credit when developed in partnership with an 
accredited institution of higher education. Successful completion may exempt students from 
developmental education and contributes to the district’s CCMR accountability measures. 

       
 

Motion Made by, Berenice Martinez, to approve as presented 
Second by, Maria Acosta 
VOTING FOR: Juan J. Ramos Jr., Berenice Martinez, Agapito Perez Jr., Maria C, Acosta, 
Yadira Flores, Janie Sarmiento, Paola Candanoza 
MOTION PASSES     
 
 
C3   Region One Distance Learning Consortium 
 Ms. Coronado presents to the board the renewal of Region One Distance 
Learning Consortium is a distance learning support in compliance, instructional 
technology integration, and curated online content for educators, students and parents. 
Region One Distance Learning Consortium provides full access to the Region One 
Compliance and Instructional Technology Online Self-Paced Courses District-wide 
access to all compliance online courses and all instructional technology online courses. 
All courses are seamlessly integrated into OMNI Track which create advantages such 
as 24/7 accessibility, single-sign-on (SSO), self-paced and interactive assessments. 
 
 
Motion Made by, Berenice Martinez, to approve as presented 
Second by, Agapito Perez Jr. 
VOTING FOR: Juan J. Ramos Jr., Berenice Martinez, Agapito Perez Jr., Maria C, Acosta, 
Yadira Flores, Janie Sarmiento, Paola Candanoza 
MOTION PASSES     
 
 
C4   MEGAbyte Cooperative Agreement  
 Ms. Coronado presents to the board the renewal MegaByte is a Learning Resources 
Integration that provides professional development 
for instructional technology. Learning Resource Integration workshops: 
● Onsite sessions 
● Online courses and webinars 
● Certification Workshops (Google, Microsoft, Adobe, 
Apple) 
● Technology and STEM conference experiences 



● MEGAbyte Roadshow support for district led 
conferences 
● Special topic workshops (EdTech Trends). 
 
Motion Made by, Berenice Martinez, to approve as presented 
Second by, Maria Acosta 
VOTING FOR: Juan J. Ramos Jr., Berenice Martinez, Agapito Perez Jr., Maria C, Acosta, 
Yadira Flores, Janie Sarmiento, Paola Candanoza 
MOTION PASSES     
 
 
C5   DMAC Solutions Agreement  
 Ms. Coronado presents to the board, the web-based applications provided 
DMAC exist to supply Texas educators with state-of-the-art tools and services 
necessary to develop and improve the quality of education provided to students. DMAC 
solutions is used for: 
• Data disaggregation (STAAR, TELPAS, etc.) 
• Generate, administer and report on TEKS-based local assessments 
• Student Achievement/Progress Monitoring 
• Appraisals (T-TESS, T-PESS and PDAS) 
• Create curriculum maps 
• Develop Campus/District Plans 
• Personal Graduation Plans 
 
Motion Made by, Berenice Martinez, to approve as presented 
Second by, Paola Candanoza 
VOTING FOR: Juan J. Ramos Jr., Berenice Martinez, Agapito Perez Jr., Maria C, Acosta, 
Yadira Flores, Janie Sarmiento, Paola Candanoza 
MOTION PASSES     
 
C6   2025-2026 TEA Allotment & TEKS Certification Renewal from Revision 
 Mr. Coronado presents to the board, in accordance with Texas Education Code 
31.1011, local educational agencies (LEAs) are required to certify annually to the State 
Board of Education (SBOE) and the commissioner that students have access to 
instructional materials covering all Texas Essential Knowledge and Skills (TEKS) for 
all required subjects, except physical education. Additionally, LEAs are required to 
certify that they protect against access to obscene or harmful content in compliance 
with the requirements for certification under (i) the Children's Internet Protection Act 
(Pub. L. No. 106-554); (ii) Section 28.0022; (iii) Section 43.22, Penal Code; and (iv) 
any other law or regulation that protects students from obscene or harmful content. 
Local educational agencies (LEAs) are required to certify annually to the State Board 
of Education (SBOE) and the commissioner that students have access to instructional 
materials covering all Texas Essential Knowledge and Skills (TEKS) for all required 
subjects, except physical education 
 
Motion Made by, Berenice Martinez, to approve as presented 
Second by, Paola Candanoza 
VOTING FOR: Juan J. Ramos Jr., Berenice Martinez, Agapito Perez Jr., Maria C, Acosta, 
Yadira Flores, Janie Sarmiento, Paola Candanoza 
MOTION PASSES     
 
 
 



D-       Support Services/ Facilities 
           Discussion and possible action on the following: 
           D1   Surplus Property Auction Update 

Mr. Hernandez presents to the board, this is to inform the Board regarding the 
public auction held on Saturday, June 7, 2025, for property previously designated as 
surplus during the February Board Meeting. The auction resulted in a total net profit of 
$27,403.24 to the district. 

     
           D2   Student Athletic Insurance Renewal    
                 Mr. Juan Hernandez presents to the board, Student Athletic Insurance is up for 

renewal. 
• Vendor: Student Insurance Plans 
• Coverage: Athletic (Grade 6-12) and school activities (Grades K–12) 
• Cost: $44,062.00 — same as last year 
 

 Motion Made by, Berenice Martinez, to table item10 
Second by, Maria Acosta 
VOTING FOR: Juan J. Ramos Jr., Berenice Martinez, Agapito Perez Jr., Maria C, Acosta, 
Yadira Flores, Janie Sarmiento, Paola Candanoza 
MOTION PASSES     

 
 
           D3 Consideration and Possible Approval of a Resolution Requesting the Installation of Video 

and Audio Monitoring Equipment in Eligible Special Education Classrooms 
   Mr. Eden Ramirez presents to the board that it was request by a parent, the 

Board of Trustees of the Progreso Independent School District (“District”) is committed to 
promoting a safe and supportive learning environment for all students, including students 
with disabilities receiving special education services; and Texas Education Code § 29.022 
authorizes the Board of Trustees to request the placement of video and audio monitoring 
equipment in self-contained classrooms and other special education settings in accordance 
with law and District policy; and Board Policy EHBAF (LEGAL) and (LOCAL) set forth 
procedures for such monitoring, including requirements for notice, signage, data retention, 
and confidentiality; and based on the recommendation of the Superintendent, the Board of 
Trustees believes that proactive placement of video and audio monitoring equipment in 
eligible special education classrooms will serve the best interest of student safety and staff 
support; NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Trustees of the 
Progreso Independent School District formally requests the installation of video and audio 
monitoring equipment in all eligible self-contained special education classrooms and 
settings, in accordance with Texas Education Code § 29.022, at the following campuses: 
• Progreso High School 
• Dorothy Thompson Middle School 
• Progreso Elementary School 
• Progreso Early Childhood Center 
 BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Superintendent or designee is directed to take 
all necessary steps to implement this request in accordance with applicable laws and 
policies, including ensuring proper procurement, installation, signage, parent notification, 
staff training, and adherence to all confidentiality and data retention requirements. 

 
Motion Made by, Berenice Martinez, to approve as presented 
Second by, Janie Sarmiento 
VOTING FOR: Juan J. Ramos Jr., Berenice Martinez, Agapito Perez Jr., Maria C, Acosta, 
Yadira Flores, Janie Sarmiento, Paola Candanoza 
MOTION PASSES     



           D4  Progreso ISD Coaches Handbook 2025-2026 
 Mr. Ivan Gonzalez (AD) presents to the board, School Board, Progreso Red Ant Athletics 
is committed to excellence in athletics while supporting the educational mission of Progreso High 
School and Progreso ISD. We meet student-athletes at their individual skill levels and educational 
needs and provide a challenging environment for skill development in both team and individual 
sports. Progreso Red Ant Athletics is connected to the whole student: academically, socially, 
emotionally and physically through intentional preparation and planning throughout the school 
day and season. We focus on creating opportunities for all student-athletes to develop skills through 
individual instruction, peer interaction and competition. While winning is not an end in itself, we 
believe that our student-athletes' willingness and efforts to be their best will lead them to succeed. 
Our mission is that all individuals associated with Red Ant Athletics (coaches, staff, student-
athletes, alumni and parents) will value character traits developed through athletic participation. 
We expect all participants to respect themselves and others, demonstrate loyalty, be good 
teammates and put the team before themselves, handle failure like they handle success, have school 
pride, have a strong work ethic, be honest, and to show up prepared. The ultimate mission of this 
program is that we develop good people that are going to leave our athletic program and be able 
to be positive contributors in our community and in life.   
  
Administration, Support Staff    
Coaching Philosophy/Sportsmanship Goals     
Coaching Requirements        
UIL Documents         
Athletic Eligibility Calendar, Head Coaches Responsibilities, Athletic Eligibility  
Progreso Coaching Athletic Policies     
Student Policies- Extracurricular Activities   
Coaches Job Descriptions        
Game Scheduling/Game Reporting     
PAPF Paperwork         
Communication         
Coaches Evaluation        
Transportation          
Clinic/Convention Information       
Criteria for Letterman Jackets       
Spectator/Parent Information       
Community Service Project      
       
Motion Made by, Berenice Martinez, to approve as presented 
Second by, Maria Acosta 
VOTING FOR: Juan J. Ramos Jr., Berenice Martinez, Agapito Perez Jr., Maria C, Acosta, 
Yadira Flores, Janie Sarmiento, Paola Candanoza 
MOTION PASSES     
 

D5 Workers' Compensation Renewal 
  Mr. Hernandez presents to the board, Participation Period: September 1, 2025 

Through August 31, 2026 Net annual rate for 25-26 is .1205 compared to last year of .1737 
Fee is Base on salary. Last year: $222,644 Renewal: $185,239 

 
Motion Made by, Berenice Martinez, to approve as presented 
Second by, Paola Candanoza 
VOTING FOR: Juan J. Ramos Jr., Berenice Martinez, Agapito Perez Jr., Maria C, Acosta, 
Yadira Flores, Janie Sarmiento, Paola Candanoza 
MOTION PASSES    



F-       Finance 
           Discussion and possible action on the following: 
           F1    Cash Disbursements 
                    Mr. Juan Hernandez informs board of trustees and proceeds to mention Cash  

 Disbursements for the month of May 2.3 million. 
 

 
           F2    Investment Report  
                    Mr. Juan Hernandez informs board of trustees and proceeds to mention  
                    Investment Report the total current earnings for the month is 38,732, just bring  
                  the total balance for investment 10,590,541 and balance 10,626,273 
 

Motion Made by, Berenice Martinez, to approve as presented 
Second by, Maria Acosta 
VOTING FOR: Juan J. Ramos Jr., Berenice Martinez, Agapito Perez Jr., Maria C, Acosta, 
Yadira Flores, Janie Sarmiento, Paola Candanoza 
MOTION PASSES     
 
 

           F3    Tax Collection 
                    Mr. Juan Hernandez informs board of trustees and proceeds to mention  
                    Tax Collection Mr. Hernandez presents tax collection to date is 3.2 million,  

 outstanding 820,280.74 Collected almost 86%. 
 

 Motion Made by, Berenice Martinez, to approve as presented 
Second by, Agapito Perez Jr. 
VOTING FOR: Juan J. Ramos Jr., Berenice Martinez, Agapito Perez Jr., Maria C, Acosta, 
Yadira Flores, Janie Sarmiento, Paola Candanoza 
MOTION PASSES     

 
 

           F4    Budget Update  
                    Mr. Juan Hernandez informs board of trustees and proceeds to mention Budget 

Update presented by Mr. Hernandez total revenue received 3.7 million, total expenditures 
14.1 million. We have an encumbrance of 1.8 million 

 
 

G-       Governance: 
           Discussion and possible action on the following: 
           G1    Policy Update 123, 124 and 125      

  Attorney Mr. Eden Ramirez presents to the board, TASB Localized Policy 
Manual Update 123, TASB Localized Policy Manual Update 124, TASB Localized Policy 
Manual Update 125. 

Policy Update 123: 
BBD(LOCAL): BOARD MEMBERS - TRAINING AND ORIENTATION 
BBFA(LOCAL): ETHICS - CONFLICT OF INTEREST DISCLOSURES 
CKC(LOCAL): SAFETY PROGRAM/RISK MANAGEMENT - EMERGENCY PLANS 
CKED(LOCAL): SECURITY PERSONNEL - OTHER SECURITY ARRANGEMENTS 
CQC(LOCAL): TECHNOLOGY RESOURCES - EQUIPMENT 
DGBA(LOCAL): PERSONNEL -MANAGEMENT RELATIONS - EMPLOYEE 
COMPLAINTS/GRIEVANCES 
EEH(LOCAL): INSTRUCTIONAL ARRANGEMENTS - HOMEBOUND INSTRUCTION 
EF(LOCAL): INSTRUCTIONAL RESOURCES 



EFA(LOCAL): INSTRUCTIONAL RESOURCES - INSTRUCTIONAL MATERIALS 
EFB(LOCAL): INSTRUCTIONAL RESOURCES - LIBRARY MATERIALS 
FNG(LOCAL): STUDENT RIGHTS AND RESPONSIBILITIES - STUDENT AND PARENT 
COMPLAINTS/GRIEVANCES 
GF(LOCAL): PUBLIC COMPLAINTS 
Policy Update 124: 
CAA(LOCAL): FISCAL MANAGEMENT GOALS AND OBJECTIVES - FINANCIAL ETHICS 
CDA(LOCAL): OTHER REVENUES - INVESTMENTS 
CY(LOCAL): INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY 
DH(LOCAL): EMPLOYEE STANDARDS OF CONDUCT 
EHB(LOCAL): CURRICULUM DESIGN - SPECIAL PROGRAMS 
EHBB(LOCAL): SPECIAL PROGRAMS - GIFTED AND TALENTED STUDENTS 
FFG(LOCAL): STUDENT WELFARE - CHILD ABUSE AND NEGLECT 
GKA(LOCAL): COMMUNITY RELATIONS - CONDUCT ON SCHOOL PREMISES 
Policy Update 125: 
BDAA(LOCAL): OFFICERS AND OFFICIALS - DUTIES AND REQUIREMENTS OF BOARD 
OFFICERS 
BDB(LOCAL): BOARD INTERNAL ORGANIZATION - BOARD COMMITTEES 
BDF(LOCAL): BOARD INTERNAL ORGANIZATION - ADVISORY COMMITTEES 
EI(LOCAL): ACADEMIC ACHIEVEMENT 
FDE(LOCAL): ADMISSIONS - SCHOOL SAFETY TRANSFERS 
FEC(LOCAL): ATTENDANCE - ATTENDANCE FOR CREDIT 
 
Motion Made by, Berenice Martinez, to approve as presented 
Second by, Maria Acosta 
VOTING FOR: Juan J. Ramos Jr., Berenice Martinez, Agapito Perez Jr., Maria C, Acosta, 
Yadira Flores, Janie Sarmiento, Paola Candanoza 
MOTION PASSES     
 

 
H- Executive Session:  Closed Meeting under Texas Gov’t Code 551.071; 551.072; 551,074; 
551.- 076; 551,082. 7:35 PM 
 
(a)      Resignations and Superintendent’s recommendations for resignations, terminations, 

 proposed terminations, re-assignments and proposed non-renewals of district employees 
(b) Superintendent’s recommendations and possible interviews for hiring of administrative & 
 professional personnel - instructional and non-instructional 
(c) Superintendent’s recommendations for hiring of non-professional personnel 

clerical/technical and auxiliary 
 
I-   Reconvene in Open Meeting to take action on the following items: 
Discuss and take possible action on the following items: 10:08 PM 
 
(a) Discussion and possible action on Superintendent’s recommendations concerning 

resignations, terminations, proposed terminations, re-assignments and proposed non-
renewals or suspensions of District employees. 

(b) Discussion and possible action on hiring of administrative & professional, instructional 
and non-instructional personnel 

(c) Discussion and possible action on hiring of non-professional Clerical/Technical and 
Auxiliary personnel  

 



Motion Made by, Juan J Ramos, to approve as presented 
Second by, Berenice Martinez  
VOTING FOR: Juan J. Ramos Jr., Berenice Martinez, Agapito Perez Jr., Maria C, Acosta, 
Yadira Flores, Janie Sarmiento, Paola Candanoza 
MOTION PASSES     
 
 

J- Adjournment 
Motion Made by, Berenice Martinez, to approve as presented 
Second by, Maria Acosta  
VOTING FOR: Juan J. Ramos Jr., Agapito Perez Jr., Yadira Flores, Janie Sarmiento, 
Paola Candanoza 
MOTION PASSES     
 

Meeting was adjourned by Board President Juan J. Ramos Jr. at 10:09 P.M. 6-26-2025. 
 
 
 

_________________________________     ___________________________________ 
Board President Juan J. Ramos Jr.,       Board Secretary, Yadira Flores 



B1 
District Reports 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Presentation 
 



 

B2 
Discussion and Possible Action to Amend 

Board Policy DC(LOCAL) Employment   
 Practices 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Presentation 
 



 

B3 
Discussion and Update on Matters 

Related to UIL Soccer Program Hearing 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 



C1 
Progreso ISD 2025-2026 Calendar 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



               Progreso ISD Academic Calendar  2025 - 2026 
   

 

Jul 2025 
S M T W T F S 
  1 2 3 4 5 

6 7 8 9 10 11 12 
13 14 15 16 17 18 19 
20 21 22 23 24 25 26 
27 28 29 30 31   

       
 

 

 

Aug 2025 
S M T W T F S 
     1 2 

3 4 5 6 7 8 9 
10 11 12 13 14 15 16 
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 
24 25 26 27 28 29 30 
31      20/10 

 

 

 

Sep 2025 
S M T W T F S 
 1 2 3 4 5 6 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 
28 29 30     

      21/20 
 

     

 

Oct 2025 
S M T W T F S 
   1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 
26 27 28 29 30 31  

      21/21 
 

 

 

Nov 2025 
S M T W T F S 
      1 

2 3 4 5 6 7 8 
9 10 11 12 13 14 15 
16 17 18 19 20 21 22 
23 24 25 26 27 28 29 
30      15/14 

 

 

 

Dec 2025 
S M T W T F S 
 1 2 3 4 5 6 

7 8 9 10 11 12 13 
14 15 16 17 18 19 20 
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 
28 29 30 31    

      15/15 
 

     

 

Jan 2026 
S M T W T F S 
    1 2 3 

4 5 6 7 8 9 10 
11 12 13 14 15 16 17 
18 19 20 21 22 23 24 
25 26 27 28 29 30 31 
      20/18 

 

 

 

Feb 2026 
S M T W T F S 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 
15 16 17 18 19 20 21 
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 
       
      18/17 

 

 

 

Mar 2026 
S M T W T F S 
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 
8 9 10 11 12 13 14 
15 16 17 18 19 20 21 
22 23 24 25 26 27 28 
29 30 31     
      17/17 

 

     

 

  Apr 2026 
S M T W T F S 
   1 2 3 4 

5 6 7 8 9 10 11 
12 13 14 15 16 17 18 
19 20 21 22 23 24 25 
26 27 28 29 30   

      20/20 
 

 

 

May 2026 
S M T W T F S 
     1 2 
3 4 5 6 7 8 9 

10 11 12 13 14 15 16 
17 18 19 20 21 22 23 

24 25 26 27 28 29 30 
31      20/15 

 

 

 

Jun 2026 
S M T W T F S 
 1 2 3 4 5 6 
7 8 9 10 11 12 13 

14 15 16 17 18 19 20 
21 22 23 24 25 26 27 

28 29 30     
       

 

Important dates 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Holidays/No Classes: Sep 1, Oct 10-13, Nov 24-28, Dec 22-31, Jan 1-2, Mar 16-20 
April 3 
 

Planning/Professional Development: Aug 5-7, 11-14, Sep 19, Nov 3, Jan 5-6, Feb 20, 
May 25-27 
 
Work Day: August 4, 8, 15, May 22, 28 
 

PHS Graduation:  May 22  

Summer School 
June 1 – 25, 2026 

 
Professional Dev. May 29 

 

Six Week Periods 
            1st Six Week:   Aug 18 – Sept 18      23 
            2nd Six Week:  Sept 22 – Oct 31       28       
            3rd Six Week:   Nov 4 – Dec 19         29 
            4th Six Week:   Jan 7 – Feb 19         30 
            5th Six Week:   Feb 23 – April 10      28 
            6th Six Week:   April 13 – May 21     29 
 

Semester 1: 80        Semester 2:  87 
Instrucional Minutes:  80,160/480 per day 

 
Early Childhood/Elementary:  7:30 a.m. – 3:30 p.m. 

DTMS:  7:45 a.m. – 3:45 p.m. 
PHS:  8:00 a.m. – 4:00 p.m. 

187 days:  Aug 4 – May 28 
197 days:  Aug 4 – June 11 
207 days:  Aug 4 – June 25 
217 days:  Aug 4 – July 9   
226 days:  July 1 – June 30 (off July 23-Aug 1) 

 

Weather Day:  Feb 6, 9, Apr 6  

Board Approved: May 14, 2025 

Early Release: Dec 19 
 



C2 
Chromebooks Purchase for Instructional 

Use 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 













C3 
Edmentum 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 











C4 
Pearlized Mathematics Consulting 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

























C5 
Sharon Wells 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 









C6 
Texas Curriculum Management Program 

Cooperative (TCMPC) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 









D1 
Discussion and Possible Action to 

Authorize Superintendent to Solicit 
RFP/RFQ/Bids for Athletic Insurance 

Services 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



SUBJECT:  Discussion and Possible Action to Authorize Superintendent to Solicit RFP/RFQ/Bids  
   for Athletic Insurance Services 

PRESENTER: Juan J Hernandez, Finance Director 

  BACKGROUND INFORMATION 

Student Athletic Insurance is up for renewal.  

• Vendor: Student Insurance Plans 
• Coverage: Athletic (Grade 6-12) and school activities (Grades K–12) 
• Cost: $44,062.00 — same as last year 
• Renewal Date – August 1, 2025 

 
ADMINISTRATIVE CONSIDERATIONS 

For Board Review and Approval 

FUNDING SOURCE AND AMOUNT 

181 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Authorize the solicitation of bids for Student Athletic Insurance coverage for the 2025–
2026 school year. 

CONTACT PERSON (S) 

Juan J Hernandez, Finance Director.  

 

 



F1 
2025-2026 Budget Workshop II 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



BUDGET WORKSHOP II

June 26, 2025 



AGENDA
I. Enrollment - ADA
II. Property Values
III. Tax Rate
IV. Budget Process



PROJECTED ENROLLMENT & ADA

Projected Enrollment & ADA

Source 21‐22 22‐23 23‐24 24‐25 25‐26*

Enrollment 1,393 1,444 1,401 1,324 1,290

ADA 1,306 1,315 1,240 1,177 1,181

Attendance 
Rate .94 .91 .89 .89 .92

*25‐26	ADA/Enrollment	Projected



PROJECTED ENROLLMENT & ADA



PROPERTY VALUES

FY	2023 FY	2024 FY	2025

Certified Property 
Values 275,876,146 285,999,690 302,244,234

Local Property Value 
Growth 19.00% 3.67% 5.37%

Compressed Tax Rate .6692 .6669 .6269

*Required	for	FIRST	indicator

*.04	Additional	Compression

*.5769	MCR	+	.05	Golden	Pennies



2025 PROPOSED TAX RATE

2021 2022 2023 2024 2025

Tax Rate for 
Maintenance & 
Operations

.9800 .8781 .6692 .7890 .7469

Tax Rate for Interest 
& Sinking .2800 .4518 .5137 .5140 .5546

Total Tax Rate 1.2600 1.3299 1.1829 1.3030 1.3015

*2025	Homestead	Exemption	‐ $140,000

*2025	Tax	Relief	for	65+/Disabled	‐ $60,000

*.2025	Business	Personal	Property	$125,000










	July 3, 2025 - Regular Board Mtg.pdf
	NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE
	PROGRESO INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
	Dated this 30th day of June, 2025 – Progreso Independent School District
	By:  ___________________________________, Superintendent
	Dated this 30th day of June, 2025 – Progreso Independent School District

	Front Cover - Board Packet update.pdf
	February 24 2025- Agenda.pdf
	NOTICE OF MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE
	PROGRESO INDEPENDENT SCHOOL DISTRICT
	Dated this 21st day of February, 2025 – Progreso Independent School District
	By:  ___________________________________, Superintendent
	Dated this 21st day of February, 2025 – Progreso Independent School District


	C1 - Progreso ISD Academic Calendar 25-26 - update.pdf
	Important dates




